
Town of Green Mountain Falls
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Agenda 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 
Tuesday, November 15, 2022, at 7:00pm 

 Public Work Session prior to meeting at 6:00pm 

   In-person* or via Zoom**: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88958379306?pwd=blB5cHJOdkxYMjQ4cUNHOW5QRGF2Zz09 

Meeting ID: 889 5837 9306; Passcode: 553438; Dial-in: 346-248-7799 

REGULAR MEETING: 
TIME: 

ITEM 
DESIRED 

OUTCOME 
6:00pm PUBLIC WORK SESSION 
7:00pm 1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA BOT Action 
Desired 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT: 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER Public 
Comment 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
a. Minutes from November 1, 2022, Board of Trustees Meeting

BOT Action 
Desired 

5. Public Hearing: CSU Water Pump Station @ 10685 Hondo Ave. BOT Action 
Desired 

6. Application for Variances: CSU Water Pump Station @ 10685 Hondo Ave. BOT Action 
Desired 

7. Change Order: CDBG Lake Project BOT Action 
Desired 

8. Application and MOU: Downtown Colorado Inc. Americorps Vista 
Volunteer 

BOT Action 
Desired 

9. Zoom for Work Sessions BOT Action 
Desired 

10. PRT Advice Memo: CDBG Phase I – Lake Project – Concrete Tint BOT Action 
Desired 

11. REPORTS 
a. Trustees
b. Committees
c. Staff

Information 
Only 

12. CORRESPONDENCE Information 
Only 

13. ADJOURN 

*The Town shall provide reasonable accommodation for those with disabilities on a case-by-case basis. Please send
accommodation requests to clerk@gmfco.us by 4pm on the date of the meeting.

**Zoom meeting will start when the regular meeting is called to order.  Public Comment for Zoom participants is 
restricted to live comment during Item #3 only.  Commenters should be prepared to use the “raise hand” function to be 
called upon.  Chat comments will not be managed or responded to.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88958379306?pwd=blB5cHJOdkxYMjQ4cUNHOW5QRGF2Zz09
mailto:clerk@gmfco.us


 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  Nate Scott, Town Clerk/Treasurer/Planner 

  

Date: November 1, 2022 

Re: 20220707 – New pump station at 10685 Hondo Ave with the following applications: 

20220707a: Variance for Sec. 16-306 (R-1 10,000 Single-Family Residential District) (b), 
permitted principal uses.  This use will not be for a residential purpose, though could be 
considered a “public building” as it will be owned by a public utility and will serve the 
residents of Green Mountain Falls. 

20220707b: Variance for Sec. 16-306 (R-1 10,000 Single-Family Residential District) (d) (4) 
a., 15-foot front setback.  Due to the significant disruption to the hillside which would be 
necessary in order to move the structure further back, the design has a front setback of 12 
feet from the street-facing (front) property line.   

20220707c: Variance for Sec. 16-714 (Hillside Overlay Zone Requirements) c. (3) c., which 
states no building shall be closer than 25 feet from a major drainage way.  This pump station 
will be approximately 15 feet from the drainage way in the right-of-way to the north of the 
structure. 

20220707d: Variance for Sec. 16-714 (Hillside Overlay Zone Requirements) c. (3) b., which 
states no building shall be closer than 100 feet from a building on an adjoining lot.  This 
pump station will be approximately 60 feet from the residence at 6985 Colorado St. and 
approximately 97 feet from the residence at 10675 Hondo Ave. 

20220707e: Grading and Erosion Control Application 

20220707f: Architectural and Zoning Review 

Background 

The applicant Dewberry Engineers, along with developer Colorado Springs Utilities (CSU) is requesting the 
Planning Commission’s consideration for an application for a new pump station build along with the variances described 
above.  The initial applications were received in June 2022 and paid for on August 23.  The parties are also working 
through the process with all necessary permits through Pikes Peak Regional Building Department.  Public notice for the 
variances was published in the Pikes Peak Courier and Town website on October 26, 2022 and posted at the project site 
and Town Hall on October 28, 2022.  The applicant understands that all contractors must acquire a Town Business 
License.   
Planning Commission Recommended Actions:  

• Review proposed variances for compliance with Green Mountain Falls Zoning and Land Use Code.   
• Review proposed Architectural and Zoning Application for compliance with Green Mountain Falls Zoning and 

Land Use Code. 
• Review proposed Grading and Erosion Control Plan for compliance with Green Mountain Falls Zoning and Land 

Use Code.   
 
Project Summary 



The purpose of this Green Mountain Falls Pump Station project is to replace the existing below-grade pump 
station, which was constructed in 1986 and has reached the end of its useful life.  The new pump station will be located at 
10685 Hondo Ave. and will ensure reliable water service for residents and businesses in Green Mountain Falls.  It will 
also provide a safer and more readily accessible working space for CSU, enabling more efficient maintenance and repair 
activities.  CSU is currently finalizing an easement agreement with the property owner to allow the pump station to be 
built on the site.   
Please refer to the included Land Suitability Analysis and other included documentation for more details. 

Discussion 

1 - Architectural and Zoning Application: 

The electronic file maintained by Town Hall, Official Town Zoning Map 2019, shows the Zone District as R-1 for parcel 
8308405014, and the lot area as 12,778 sq. feet.  Therefor the setback requirements are:  

a. Front, fifteen (15) feet;
b. Side, ten (10) feet;
c. Rear, ten (10) feet.

Furthermore, the development conditions of minimum lot area (10,000 square feet) and minimum frontage (100 feet at the 
front setback line) are both met.    

2 – Granting of Variances: 

Sec. 16-709. Variances. (Staff comments in bold.) 
(a) No variance in the strict application of the provisions of this Land Use Code, including building requirements,
signs, and fences, shall be recommended by the Planning Commission or approved by the Board of Trustees
unless it finds that the following requirements and standards are satisfied. It is the intent of this Article that the
variance be used only to overcome some exceptional physical condition of a parcel of land located within the
neighborhood which poses practical difficulty to its development and prevents its owner from using the property
as intended by this Land Use Code. Any variation granted shall be the minimum adjustment necessary for the
reasonable use of the land.
(b) The applicant must prove that the variance will not be contrary to the public interest and that practical
difficulty and unnecessary hardship will result if it is not granted. In particular, the applicant shall establish and
substantiate that the appeal for the variance conforms to the requirements and standards listed below:

(1) The granting of the variance shall be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the regulations
imposed by this Land Use Code on the district in which it is located and shall not be injurious to the
neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public.  This project is beneficial to public health, public
safety, property value, and neighborhood aesthetics.
(2) The granting of the variance will not permit the establishment of any use which is not permitted in the
district. The definition of the zoning district indicates that a “public building” could be considered
as a special use.  This application is for a use which will benefit and be “owned” essentially by the
public as a utility.
(3) There must be proof of unique circumstances.  There must exist special circumstances or conditions,
fully described in the findings, applicable to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which
circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such land or buildings in the neighborhood and which
circumstances, or conditions are such that the strict application of the provisions of this Land Use Code
would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of such land or building.  The unique circumstance in
this case is that there is a very limited number of sites which would meet this utility’s need.
(4) There must be proof of unnecessary hardship. It is not sufficient proof of hardship to show that greater
profit would result if the variance were granted. Furthermore, the hardship complained of cannot be self-
created; nor can it be established on this basis by one who purchases with or without knowledge of the
restrictions; it must be suffered directly by the property in question; and evidence of variances granted



under similar circumstances shall not be considered.  The unique circumstance listed above dictates a 
limited area to build, creating a hardship for this project.   
(5) The granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building and the
variance as granted by the Board of Trustees is the minimum variance that will accomplish this purpose.
The report of the Planning Commission shall fully set forth the circumstances by which this Land Use
Code would deprive the applicant of any reasonable use of his or her land.  Mere reasonable loss in value
shall not justify a variation; there must be a deprivation of beneficial use of land.  This proposed use is
reasonable for the R-1 zoning district based on precedent.  The existing pump station, which this
will replace, also has existed in an R-1 district.
(6) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property,
substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, increase the danger of fire, endanger the public
safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the adjacent neighborhood.  Staff
believes this requirement is met.
(7) The granting of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is
denied by this Land Use Code to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district. One question
staff had was regarding noise levels.  Per Dewberry: The generator noise level will be 75 decibels or
less at 23 feet. The generator is tested once a month for 15 minutes, typically this is scheduled for a day
in the middle of the week and begins at 10 am. The pump station noise level will be less than 60
decibels. For normal operations the pump station will run intermittently and is not expected to run for
more than 4 hours total a day. There is also a condensing unit that sits in the generator enclosure and
will run intermittently during the warmer months (same decibels as the pump station noise level).

Based on this response from Dewberry, staff has no concerns with the noise, as the 
generator noise is minimal (once a month, during the day) and the “less than 60 decibels” meets the 
commercial limit of noise during the day.  At night, it may exceed commercial limits by 5 decibels 
only.  (Ref. article XII – Noise) 

(c) The Board of Trustees may prescribe any safeguard that it deems necessary to substantially secure the
objectives of the regulations or provisions to which the variance applies.
(d) Upon application, the Planning Commission, after giving notice as required by law, shall schedule a public
hearing of the proposed variance. The Planning Commission shall consider and decide all proposed variations,
taking into account the standards enumerated above.
(e) Procedure. Procedures for variance hearings shall be the same as those for zoning and rezoning, with the
exception of the publication requirement contained in Paragraph 16-711(f)(2) below, which shall not be required.
(Ord. 97-01)

Regarding the variance to the 15-foot front setback, the applicant has designed the site with the maximum 
possible setback for feasibility.  Additionally, there is additional buffer to the street because of the drainage 
ditch between the property line and street.  

3 – Granting of Hillside Overlay Exemptions: 

Considering the limited site options in town, staff believes that Colorado Springs Utilities and Dewberry have 
done due diligence in order to minimize the scope of variances and exemptions needed for this development.  The 
“distance to other buildings” exemption is only three feet short of meeting the 100-foot requirement.  The only 
other building within the 100-foot requirement is the cabin used by the owners who are granting the easement for 
the project.  The “distance to drainage” requirement is exemption is for about 10 feet, and the developer will be 
improving drainage from the site with a culvert which has larger capacity via length and diameter specifications 
than what exists now.   

4 - Conclusion and Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of all applications. 

https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CD_ORD_CH10GEOF_ARTXIINO


 

Page 1 of 2 

October 12, 2022 

Town of Green Mountain Falls  
Attn: Nate Scott, Planner  
Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 

RE: Land Suitability Analysis  

Dear Mr. Scott, 

Dewberry Engineers is pleased to submit a Land Suitability Analysis and documentation for the Green 
Mountain Falls Pump Station (GMFPS) on behalf of Colorado Springs Utilities for review and comment. A 
Development Plan and Grading and Erosion Control Plan have been submitted with the Architectural and 
Zoning Review and Grading and Erosion Control Submittals respectively. 

The purpose of the GMFPS project is to replace the existing below grade pump station. The existing 
pump station was constructed in 1986 and has reached the end of its useful life. The new pump station 
will be located at 10685 Hondo Avenue and will ensure reliable water service for residents and 
businesses in Green Mountain Falls. It will also provide a safer and more readily accessible working 
space for Colorado Springs Utilities enabling more efficient maintenance and repair activities. Colorado 
Springs Utilities is currently negotiating the terms of an easement with the property owner to allow the 
pump station to be built on the site. 

The majority of 10685 Hondo Avenue slopes from south to north at approximately 45%. The site flattens 
out at the bottom of this hill and slopes at approximately 10% from west to east as shown on the 
Composite Map in Attachment A. There is an existing retaining wall on the east side of the site which 
allows the area at the bottom of the hill to be relatively less steep.  

The ecosystem at the site is defined as mixed conifer by the Colorado Forest Service. The surrounding 
area is residential and relatively densely developed. The addition of the proposed building is expected to 
have minimal impact to wildlife habitat and migration corridors due to the high level of development 
already in the area. 

The proposed building exterior will be construction of concrete, stone veneer, metal siding, and a 
standing seam metal roof. The building is not expected to increase wildfire potential in the area. An 
emergency diesel generator will sit in the enclosure adjacent to the pump station building. The diesel fuel 
tank will be a double containment tank and is not expected to increase wildfire risk in the area.  

A geotechnical investigation and soils analysis were completed for the site. The results and 
recommendations are provided in Attachment B. 

There is an existing drainageway on the north portion of the site and a retaining wall on the east side of 
the site. The site is otherwise undeveloped.  

The proposed new pump station will be an above grade building that sits back into the hillside on the 
property. The building walls are designed to support the hillside on its south, east, and west sides.  
Two concrete retaining walls will be construction on the east side of the site to replace the existing 
retaining wall that has partially failed and allow for grading of a parking area to the north of the building. 
The existing culvert will be replaced with a new, longer culvert to allow the parking are to be expanded. A 
concrete headwall will be used at the west end of the culver to support the drainage channel. The 



Mr. Scott 
Green Mountain Falls Pump Station  
October 12, 2022 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

retaining walls will act at the headwalls on the east end. The concrete will be colored to blend with the 
building aesthetics. Drawing C-3 shows the items discussed above as well as proposed grading. 
 
Excavation for the building will be accomplished using shoring and bracing to limit the extent of the 
excavation and its impacts on the surrounding area and to mitigate any concerns with the slope shifting 
during construction. The shoring and bracing system will be designed and stamped by a professional 
engineer registered in the State of Colorado. The shoring and bracing calculations will be provided during 
the construction phase of the project. 
 
While the site presents difficulties for design and construction of the new pump station, the site and 
structure as designed should not create issues for the Green Mountain Falls community during 
construction or for the life of the building.   
 
Please contact Sam Franzen at sfranzen@dewberry.com or 303-951-0618 with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
Sincerely,   

 

Sam Franzen 
Project Engineer 

mailto:sfranzen@dewberry.com


 
 

 

 

Attachment A – Composite Plan 
  





 
 

 

 

Attachment B – Geotechnical Investigation Report 
 
 



























































































 
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Land Use Approval Application 

Zoning Variance  
 

• A zoning variance is a request to deviate from the requirements in the Green Mountain Falls Land Use 
and Zoning Code, as established in §16-709.  

• This checklist is a guide to submitting a complete application and is not a substitute for all provisions 
in GMF Municipal Code. Applicants are responsible for reviewing and understanding the Code. 

• Complete applications are subject to four weeks (28 days) GMF Staff review before appearing on 
Planning Commission and Board of Trustees agendas.  

Applicant: 

Address: 

E-Mail: 

Phone: 

Owner: 

Address: 

E-mail: 

Phone: 

 
Address: 

Zoning Designation: Lot Size: 

Hillside Overlay zone?  Yes ☐ No ☐ Land Survey Included: Yes ☐          No ☐ 

APPLICANT’S STATEMENT: I understand the procedures that apply to my request and acknowledge an incomplete 
application will not be processed or scheduled for public hearing until such time it is complete. GMF Town Staff’s acceptance 
of the application, the payment of fees, and submittal of accompanying materials does not constitute completeness. I further 
agree to reimburse the city for technical and professional consulting expenses that may be incurred during the review of my 
request. Failure to reimburse the Town for invoiced expenses constitutes an incomplete application.  
Certification: The undersigned applicant certifies under oath and under penalties of perjury that the information found in the 
application is true and accurate to the best of their knowledge.  
 

Applicant Signature       Date                                    

Owner Signature         Date    

Owner Signature         Date    

This document can be signed electronically using Adobe Reader DC for free.  

  

General Information 

Applicant 

Property 

Certification & Signature 

Dewberry Engineers, Inc. - Sam Franzen

990 S Broadway, Denver, CO 80209

sfranzen@dewberry.com

303-951-0618

Colorado Springs Utilities - Larysa Voronova

lvoronova@csu.org

719-668-3851

121 S Tejon St, Suite 200, Colorado Springs, CO 80947

10685 Hondo Ave, Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819

12,778 sqftR-1 10,000

x x

10/12/2022

https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA
https://helpx.adobe.com/reader/using/sign-pdfs.html


The following checklist is a guideline for submitting a complete Variance Land Use Approval Application. 
Failure to provide information that address the standards and requirements in GMF Zoning Code could 
result in staff review delays. GMF Staff may require additional information in accordance with Town Code 
and Town Attorney’s recommendation. 
 

 1. Variance Application & Petition 

a. Application, signed and dated by the applicant and property owner(s) 
b. Application fee 
c. Letter of explanation 

i. Describe the proposed project in detail, referring to site plans and drawings as necessary 
i. Describe the reason for pursuing a variance; include benefits to yourself, the neighborhood, 

and the Town. 
ii. Explain how the variance would not be contrary to the public interest.  

iii. Provide proof of unique circumstances or conditions and how the strict application of the 
provisions of GMF Zoning and Land Use Code would deprive the applicant of the reasonable 
use of such land or building as described in the Zoning Code §16-709 

iv. Provide proof of unnecessary hardship as described in the Zoning Code §16-709 

 2. Development Plan  

a. Vicinity Map  
b. Total development plan area in acres or square feet  
c. Zoning setbacks 
a. North arrow 
b. Property boundaries and dimensions 
c. Existing and proposed lots and tract lines, with dimensions 
d. Existing and proposed topography (contour lines or slope) 
e. Show and label all access points to the property from adjacent streets and alleys 
f. Proposed grading plan and separate GECP application 

3. Procedure: 

a. Consultation meeting with GMF Staff and draft plans 
b. Submit completed application and checklist materials electronically: planner@gmfco.us 
c. Submit appropriate fees to Town Clerk for receipt 
d. Work with GMF Staff to schedule public hearings 

 
 

 

Variance Checklist 

GMF Town Staff: 
� Application 
� Variance Petition 
� Development Plan 
� Application fee 

 Date____________   Amount_____________ � Check #_____________ � Credit Card 
 

https://greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov/sites/greenmountainfalls/files/documents/2021%20Fee%20Schedule.pdf
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA


 

 
  

 

Page 1 of 2 

October 12, 2022 

Town of Green Mountain Falls  
Attn: Nate Scott, Planner  
Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819  
 
RE: Letter of Explanation for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station   

Dear Mr. Scott, 

Dewberry Engineers is pleased to submit a Variance Application and documentation for non-residential 
use of a residentially zoned property for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station (GMFPS) on behalf of 
Colorado Springs Utilities. The Variance Application and supporting documentation are provided for 
review and comment. A digital copy has also been emailed.  

The site selected for the new GMFPS is 10685 Hondo Avenue. The property is owned by the same entity 
that owns the property at 6985 Colorado St directly to the west. Colorado Springs Utilities is currently 
negotiating the terms of an easement with the property owner to allow the pump station to be built on the 
site. The agreement and required Owner Signature will be submitted once the agreement is finalized.  

This variance is being proposed because the selected site for the GMFPS is zone R-1 10,000 and this 
building is non-residential in nature. 

A Study/Alternative Analysis (SAA) evaluated twelve sites within Green Mountain Falls as options for the 
new pump station. Identifying viable locations for the GMFPS was difficult due to the steep nature of the 
terrain, the majority of the land in GMF being privately owned residential property, and the necessity of 
selecting a site near the intersection of the pumped and gravity zones in Colorado Springs Utilities water 
system. The SAA concluded the most suitable site for GMFPS is 10685 Hondo Avenue west of Ute Pass 
Avenue which can be seen on the location and vicinity maps on the Development Plan cover sheet and 
drawing C-1, attached. Colorado Springs Utilities is currently negotiating an easement on the property for 
the pump station with the property owner.  
 
The purpose of the GMFPS project is to replace the existing below grade pump station. The existing 
pump station was constructed in 1986 and has reached the end of its useful life. The new pump station 
will ensure reliable water service for residents and businesses in Green Mountain Falls. It will also provide 
a safer and more readily accessible working space for Colorado Springs Utilities enabling more efficient 
maintenance and repair activities.  

The new pump station site also allows for parking for maintenance vehicles whereas at the existing site 
vehicles park on the road impeding traffic. The existing pump station is a below grade structure located at 
the intersection of Mountain Avenue and Spruce Avenue in existing easements on private properties and 
is directly adjacent to two residences. Space at the existing site is restricted and construction of a new 
pump station at the existing site is not feasible. The existing pump station will be demolished and 
abandoned once the new pump station is constructed and operating. 

The new pump station will be an above grade building that sits back into the hillside on the property, see 
drawing C-3, attached. The building will be a single room that is 22’-8” by 18’-10”. A 13’-8” by 17’-8” open 
topped enclosure for a backup emergency generator will be attached to the east side of the building. The 
building location on the site and arrangement can be seen on drawing C-3 and A-2, attached.  



Mr. Scott 
Green Mountain Falls Pump Station  
October 12, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Generally, proposed site grading is designed to match existing drainage patterns as shown on drawing C-
4, attached. The most significant grading changes occur where the pump station building is built into the 
hillside and in front of the building where a portion of the drainage channel is replaced with a culvert to 
allow the parking area to be expanded. 
 
The building walls will be concrete covered with a veneer composed of natural stone facing on the bottom 
and pre-finished metal narrow batten siding above. The stone veneer will slope to match the grade 
around the building. The generator enclosure walls will be concrete covered with a natural stone veneer 
to match the building and capped with colored concrete wall caps. The building roof will be pre-finished 
metal standing seam that is the same color as the wall siding. The roof slants only to the east to minimize 
the view impacts from the neighboring properties. Stone and metal wall and roof finish colors will be 
primarily earth tones, browns, and grays selected to blend with the surrounding environment.  A double 
man door will be installed on the north face of the building for access and to allow for equipment removal 
for maintenance. The generator enclosure will have a fabricated steel gate for access. The door and gate 
will be finished to blend with the building aesthetic. Building elevations can be seen on drawings A-3 and 
A-4, attached. 
 
A parking area composed of Class 6 road base will be provided on the north side of the building and will 
be large enough to accommodate two Colorado Springs Utilities maintenance vehicles. Two concrete 
retaining walls will be construction on the east side of the site to replace the existing retaining wall that 
has partially failed and to allow for grading of the parking area. The concrete will be colored to blend with 
the building aesthetics and surrounding environment. Drawing C-3, attached, shows the items discussed 
above as well as the proposed grading. 
 
The pump station will provide an integral service to Green Mountain Falls and its residents. Design of the 
building and site have focused on blending the structure with the aesthetics of the buildings in the area to 
minimize the impact of the structure on the surrounding environment.   
 
Please contact Sam Franzen at sfranzen@dewberry.com or 303-951-0618 with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
Sincerely,   

 

Sam Franzen 
Project Engineer 

mailto:sfranzen@dewberry.com




















 
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Land Use Approval Application 

Zoning Variance  
 

• A zoning variance is a request to deviate from the requirements in the Green Mountain Falls Land Use 
and Zoning Code, as established in §16-709.  

• This checklist is a guide to submitting a complete application and is not a substitute for all provisions 
in GMF Municipal Code. Applicants are responsible for reviewing and understanding the Code. 

• Complete applications are subject to four weeks (28 days) GMF Staff review before appearing on 
Planning Commission and Board of Trustees agendas.  

Applicant: 

Address: 

E-Mail: 

Phone: 

Owner: 

Address: 

E-mail: 

Phone: 

 
Address: 

Zoning Designation: Lot Size: 

Hillside Overlay zone?  Yes ☐ No ☐ Land Survey Included: Yes ☐          No ☐ 

APPLICANT’S STATEMENT: I understand the procedures that apply to my request and acknowledge an incomplete 
application will not be processed or scheduled for public hearing until such time it is complete. GMF Town Staff’s acceptance 
of the application, the payment of fees, and submittal of accompanying materials does not constitute completeness. I further 
agree to reimburse the city for technical and professional consulting expenses that may be incurred during the review of my 
request. Failure to reimburse the Town for invoiced expenses constitutes an incomplete application.  
Certification: The undersigned applicant certifies under oath and under penalties of perjury that the information found in the 
application is true and accurate to the best of their knowledge.  
 

Applicant Signature       Date                                    

Owner Signature         Date    

Owner Signature         Date    

This document can be signed electronically using Adobe Reader DC for free.  

  

General Information 

Applicant 

Property 

Certification & Signature 

Dewberry Engineers, Inc. - Sam Franzen

990 S Broadway, Denver, CO 80209

sfranzen@dewberry.com

303-951-0618

Colorado Springs Utilities - Larysa Voronova

lvoronova@csu.org

719-668-3851

121 S Tejon St, Suite 200, Colorado Springs, CO 80947

10685 Hondo Ave, Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819

12,778 sqftR-1 10,000

x x

10/12/2022

https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA
https://helpx.adobe.com/reader/using/sign-pdfs.html


The following checklist is a guideline for submitting a complete Variance Land Use Approval Application. 
Failure to provide information that address the standards and requirements in GMF Zoning Code could 
result in staff review delays. GMF Staff may require additional information in accordance with Town Code 
and Town Attorney’s recommendation. 
 

 1. Variance Application & Petition 

a. Application, signed and dated by the applicant and property owner(s) 
b. Application fee 
c. Letter of explanation 

i. Describe the proposed project in detail, referring to site plans and drawings as necessary 
i. Describe the reason for pursuing a variance; include benefits to yourself, the neighborhood, 

and the Town. 
ii. Explain how the variance would not be contrary to the public interest.  

iii. Provide proof of unique circumstances or conditions and how the strict application of the 
provisions of GMF Zoning and Land Use Code would deprive the applicant of the reasonable 
use of such land or building as described in the Zoning Code §16-709 

iv. Provide proof of unnecessary hardship as described in the Zoning Code §16-709 

 2. Development Plan  

a. Vicinity Map  
b. Total development plan area in acres or square feet  
c. Zoning setbacks 
a. North arrow 
b. Property boundaries and dimensions 
c. Existing and proposed lots and tract lines, with dimensions 
d. Existing and proposed topography (contour lines or slope) 
e. Show and label all access points to the property from adjacent streets and alleys 
f. Proposed grading plan and separate GECP application 

3. Procedure: 

a. Consultation meeting with GMF Staff and draft plans 
b. Submit completed application and checklist materials electronically: planner@gmfco.us 
c. Submit appropriate fees to Town Clerk for receipt 
d. Work with GMF Staff to schedule public hearings 

 
 

 

Variance Checklist 

GMF Town Staff: 
� Application 
� Variance Petition 
� Development Plan 
� Application fee 

 Date____________   Amount_____________ � Check #_____________ � Credit Card 
 

https://greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov/sites/greenmountainfalls/files/documents/2021%20Fee%20Schedule.pdf
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA


 

 
  

 

Page 1 of 2 

October 12, 2022 

Town of Green Mountain Falls  
Attn: Nate Scott, Planner  
Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819  
 
RE: Letter of Explanation for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station   

Dear Mr. Scott, 

Dewberry Engineers is pleased to submit a Variance Application and documentation for the front setback 
requirements for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station (GMFPS) on behalf of Colorado Springs 
Utilities. The Variance Application and supporting documentation are provided for review and comment.  

The site selected for the new GMFPS is 10685 Hondo Avenue. The property is owned by the same entity 
that owns the property at 6985 Colorado St directly to the west. Colorado Springs Utilities is currently 
negotiating the terms of an easement with the property owner to allow the pump station to be built on the 
site. The agreement and required Owner Signature will be submitted once the agreement is finalized.  

This variance is being proposed because the steepness of the hillside on the site limits where the building 
can be located specifically in relation to the front property and right of way line paralleling Hondo Ave as 
shown on drawing C-3 in the Development Plan, attached. The GMF Municipal Code requires a 15 foot 
setback for properties zoned R-1 10,000. The proposed building has been pushed back into the hillside 
on the site to limit its visibility to surrounding residences and provide as much setback from the front 
property as possible. However, only a 12 foot setback at the closest point from the front property line is 
able to be provided. Locating the building further into the hillside will require more disturbance of the 
hillside to accomplish construction and achieve the final grading required to route flow around the 
building. This will lead to the removal of additional vegetation and trees.  

There is approximately 23 feet between the property/right of way line and edge of the existing road, so 
the proposed building will be setback 35 feet from the edge of road. The right of way is this wide to 
encompass the drainageway running parallel with Hondo Ave. Having the building 35 feet from the edge 
of the road limits its exposure to the public and surrounding properties.  

The purpose of the GMFPS project is to replace the existing below grade pump station. The existing 
pump station was constructed in 1986 and has reached the end of its useful life. The new pump station 
will ensure reliable water service for residents and businesses in Green Mountain Falls. It will also provide 
a safer and more readily accessible working space for Colorado Springs Utilities enabling more efficient 
maintenance and repair activities.  

The new pump station will be an above grade building that sits back into the hillside on the property, see 
drawing C-3, attached. The building will be a single room that is 22’-8” by 18’-10”. A 13’-8” by 17’-8” open 
topped enclosure for a backup emergency generator will be attached to the east side of the building. The 
building location on the site and arrangement can be seen on drawing C-3 and A-2, attached.  
 
Generally, proposed site grading is designed to match existing drainage patterns as shown on drawing C-
4, attached. The most significant grading changes occur where the pump station building is built into the 
hillside and in front of the building where a portion of the drainage channel is replaced with a culvert to 
allow the parking area to be expanded. 



Mr. Scott 
Green Mountain Falls Pump Station  
October 12, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

The building walls will be concrete covered with a veneer composed of natural stone facing on the bottom 
and pre-finished metal narrow batten siding above. The stone veneer will slope to match the grade 
around the building. The generator enclosure walls will be concrete covered with a natural stone veneer 
to match the building and capped with colored concrete wall caps. The building roof will be pre-finished 
metal standing seam that is the same color as the wall siding. The roof slants only to the east to minimize 
the view impacts from the neighboring properties. Stone and metal wall and roof finish colors will be 
primarily earth tones, browns, and grays selected to blend with the surrounding environment.  A double 
man door will be installed on the north face of the building for access and to allow for equipment removal 
for maintenance. The generator enclosure will have a fabricated steel gate for access. The door and gate 
will be finished to blend with the building aesthetic. Building elevations can be seen on drawings A-3 and 
A-4, attached. 
 
A parking area composed of Class 6 road base will be provided on the north side of the building and will 
be large enough to accommodate two Colorado Springs Utilities maintenance vehicles. Two concrete 
retaining walls will be construction on the east side of the site to replace the existing retaining wall that 
has partially failed and to allow for grading of the parking area. The concrete will be colored to blend with 
the building aesthetics and surrounding environment. Drawing C-3, attached, shows the items discussed 
above as well as the proposed grading. 
 
The pump station will provide an integral service to Green Mountain Falls and its residents. While the 
building is within the required front setback the large right of way space needed to accommodate the 
drainage channel to the north of the building means the building is setback 35 feet from the edge of the 
road. 
 
Please contact Sam Franzen at sfranzen@dewberry.com or 303-951-0618 with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely,   

 

Sam Franzen 
Project Engineer 

mailto:sfranzen@dewberry.com




















 
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Land Use Approval Application 

Zoning Variance  
 

• A zoning variance is a request to deviate from the requirements in the Green Mountain Falls Land Use 
and Zoning Code, as established in §16-709.  

• This checklist is a guide to submitting a complete application and is not a substitute for all provisions 
in GMF Municipal Code. Applicants are responsible for reviewing and understanding the Code. 

• Complete applications are subject to four weeks (28 days) GMF Staff review before appearing on 
Planning Commission and Board of Trustees agendas.  

Applicant: 

Address: 

E-Mail: 

Phone: 

Owner: 

Address: 

E-mail: 

Phone: 

 
Address: 

Zoning Designation: Lot Size: 

Hillside Overlay zone?  Yes ☐ No ☐ Land Survey Included: Yes ☐          No ☐ 

APPLICANT’S STATEMENT: I understand the procedures that apply to my request and acknowledge an incomplete 
application will not be processed or scheduled for public hearing until such time it is complete. GMF Town Staff’s acceptance 
of the application, the payment of fees, and submittal of accompanying materials does not constitute completeness. I further 
agree to reimburse the city for technical and professional consulting expenses that may be incurred during the review of my 
request. Failure to reimburse the Town for invoiced expenses constitutes an incomplete application.  
Certification: The undersigned applicant certifies under oath and under penalties of perjury that the information found in the 
application is true and accurate to the best of their knowledge.  
 

Applicant Signature       Date                                    

Owner Signature         Date    

Owner Signature         Date    

This document can be signed electronically using Adobe Reader DC for free.  

  

General Information 

Applicant 

Property 

Certification & Signature 

Dewberry Engineers, Inc. - Sam Franzen

990 S Broadway, Denver, CO 80209

sfranzen@dewberry.com

303-951-0618

Colorado Springs Utilities - Larysa Voronova

lvoronova@csu.org

719-668-3851

121 S Tejon St, Suite 200, Colorado Springs, CO 80947

10685 Hondo Ave, Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819

12,778 sqftR-1 10,000

x x

10/12/2022

https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA
https://helpx.adobe.com/reader/using/sign-pdfs.html


The following checklist is a guideline for submitting a complete Variance Land Use Approval Application. 
Failure to provide information that address the standards and requirements in GMF Zoning Code could 
result in staff review delays. GMF Staff may require additional information in accordance with Town Code 
and Town Attorney’s recommendation. 
 

 1. Variance Application & Petition 

a. Application, signed and dated by the applicant and property owner(s) 
b. Application fee 
c. Letter of explanation 

i. Describe the proposed project in detail, referring to site plans and drawings as necessary 
i. Describe the reason for pursuing a variance; include benefits to yourself, the neighborhood, 

and the Town. 
ii. Explain how the variance would not be contrary to the public interest.  

iii. Provide proof of unique circumstances or conditions and how the strict application of the 
provisions of GMF Zoning and Land Use Code would deprive the applicant of the reasonable 
use of such land or building as described in the Zoning Code §16-709 

iv. Provide proof of unnecessary hardship as described in the Zoning Code §16-709 

 2. Development Plan  

a. Vicinity Map  
b. Total development plan area in acres or square feet  
c. Zoning setbacks 
a. North arrow 
b. Property boundaries and dimensions 
c. Existing and proposed lots and tract lines, with dimensions 
d. Existing and proposed topography (contour lines or slope) 
e. Show and label all access points to the property from adjacent streets and alleys 
f. Proposed grading plan and separate GECP application 

3. Procedure: 

a. Consultation meeting with GMF Staff and draft plans 
b. Submit completed application and checklist materials electronically: planner@gmfco.us 
c. Submit appropriate fees to Town Clerk for receipt 
d. Work with GMF Staff to schedule public hearings 

 
 

 

Variance Checklist 

GMF Town Staff: 
� Application 
� Variance Petition 
� Development Plan 
� Application fee 

 Date____________   Amount_____________ � Check #_____________ � Credit Card 
 

https://greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov/sites/greenmountainfalls/files/documents/2021%20Fee%20Schedule.pdf
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-709VA


 

 
  

 

Page 1 of 2 

October 12, 2022 

Town of Green Mountain Falls  
Attn: Nate Scott, Planner  
Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819  
 
RE: Letter of Explanation – Hillside Overlay Waiver for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station   

Dear Mr. Scott, 

Dewberry Engineers is pleased to submit a Waiver Application and documentation for two items in the 
Hillside Overlay requirements for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station (GMFPS) on behalf of Colorado 
Springs Utilities. The first is Sec. 16-714.c.3.b which states no building shall be closer than 100 feet from 
a building on an adjoining lot. The second is 16-714.c.3.c which states no building shall be closer than 25 
feet from a major drainage way. The Waiver Application and supporting documentation are provided for 
review and comment.  

The site selected for the new GMFPS is 10685 Hondo Avenue. The property is owned by the same entity 
that owns the property at 6985 Colorado St directly to the west. Colorado Springs Utilities is currently 
negotiating the terms of an easement with the property owner to allow the pump station to be built on the 
site. The agreement and required Owner Signature will be submitted once the agreement is finalized.  

This waiver for the first item is being proposed because the new pump station structure is approximately 
60 feet from the residence at 6985 Colorado St and 97 feet from the residence at 10675 Hondo AveThe 
hillside overlay area in Green Mountain Falls is relatively densely populated and many of the existing 
residential structures are within 100 feet of structures on adjoining lots. The new pump station structure 
has been designed to be unobtrusive to the surrounding residences as much as possible by setting it into 
the hillside and selecting architectural finishes and colors so that it blends with the surrounding 
environment and structures. The new pump station building also sits below the residences on the 
adjoining lots and should not be in their view path across the valley. Additionally, the specified 
construction methods include shoring and bracing the excavation to limit its extent. The excavation for the 
pump station building will not affect neighboring properties.  

The waiver on the second item is being proposed because the new pump station structure is 
approximately 15 feet, at its closest, to the drainage way located to the north of the building. Due to the 
steepness of the hillside on the lot it is not feasible to construct the building further into the hill than it is 
currently shown. The existing 24-inch diameter culvert is also being replaced with a 30-inch diameter 
culvert which will increase its overall capacity. The culvert length will also be increased, and it will run the 
entire length of the pump station. New headwalls will be installed at either end of the new culvert 
replacing the existing headwalls and stabilizing the channel in these areas.  

The purpose of the GMFPS project is to replace the existing below grade pump station. The existing 
pump station was constructed in 1986 and has reached the end of its useful life. The new pump station 
will ensure reliable water service for residents and businesses in Green Mountain Falls. It will also provide 
a safer and more readily accessible working space for Colorado Springs Utilities enabling more efficient 
maintenance and repair activities.  

The new pump station will be an above grade building that sits back into the hillside on the property, see 
drawing C-3, attached. The building will be a single room that is 22’-8” by 18’-10”. A 13’-8” by 17’-8” open 



Mr. Scott 
Green Mountain Falls Pump Station  
October 12, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

topped enclosure for a backup emergency generator will be attached to the east side of the building. The 
building location on the site and arrangement can be seen on drawing C-3 and A-2, attached.  
 
The building walls will be concrete covered with a veneer composed of natural stone facing on the bottom 
and pre-finished metal narrow batten siding above. The stone veneer will slope to match the grade 
around the building. The generator enclosure walls will be concrete covered with a natural stone veneer 
to match the building and capped with colored concrete wall caps. The building roof will be pre-finished 
metal standing seam that is the same color as the wall siding. The roof slants only to the east to minimize 
the view impacts from the neighboring properties. Stone and metal wall and roof finish colors will be 
primarily earth tones, browns, and grays selected to blend with the surrounding environment.  A double 
man door will be installed on the north face of the building for access and to allow for equipment removal 
for maintenance. The generator enclosure will have a fabricated steel gate for access. The door and gate 
will be finished to blend with the building aesthetic. Building elevations can be seen on drawings A-3 and 
A-4, attached. 
 
The pump station will provide an integral service to Green Mountain Falls and its residents. While the 
building is within the required setback distances stipulated in the Hillside Overlay it has been designed to 
fit in with the surroundings and should not negatively affect adjacent residences or the Town. 
 
Please contact Sam Franzen at sfranzen@dewberry.com or 303-951-0618 with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely,   

 

Sam Franzen 
Project Engineer 

mailto:sfranzen@dewberry.com
























 

 
  

 

Page 1 of 1 

October 12, 2022 

Town of Green Mountain Falls  
Attn: Nate Scott, Planner  
Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819  
 
RE: Grading and Erosion Control and Landscaping Plans   

Dear Mr. Scott, 

Dewberry Engineers is pleased to submit the Grading and Erosion Control and Landscaping Plans and 
documentation for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station (GMFPS) on behalf of Colorado Springs 
Utilities for review and comment.  

The runoff patterns from the site are not significantly modified by proposed grading. Runoff will still travel 
from southwest to northeast across the site until it is collected in the drainageway in the right of way north 
of the site. Runoff that will run into the proposed building is intercepted by a gutter that discharges to an 
inlet that discharges to the drainage culvert beneath the drive area.  

Additionally, an underdrain system collects water that has infiltrated into the soil and travelled down to the 
building foundation. The underdrain system discharges to the culvert under the parking area. Discharge 
from the underdrain system is expected to be intermittent as groundwater was not encountered in either 
of the boreholes on the site as shown in the geotechnical report.  

The existing 24-inch culvert will be replaced with a new 30-inch culvert and extended to expand the 
parking area. The new culvert will have a greater capacity than the existing culvert. 

Existing trees that will remain and seeding that will occur after the construction is complete are shown on 
drawing EC-1. Per the easement agreement between Colorado Springs Utilities and the property owner, 
the property owner will be compensated for trees that will be removed by the project. The property owner 
may use those funds to install and maintain landscaping as they deem necessary. 

The Grading and Erosion Control Plans drawings are provided in Attachment A. Calculations for the 
runoff, gutter, inlet, culvert, and pipeline between the inlet and culvert are provided in Attachment B. 

Sincerely,   

 

Sam Franzen 
Project Engineer 



 

 

Attachment A – Grading and Erosion Control Plans 
  



sfranzen
Typewritten Text
NOVEMBER

sfranzen
Snapshot





sfranzen
Snapshot























 
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Land Use Approval Application 

 Architectural Plan Review 
 

• This checklist serves as a guideline for submitting a Zoning & Architectural Plan Review Land Use 
Approval application and is not a substitute for the provisions in GMF Municipal Code or any other 
rules that may apply.  

• Applicants are responsible for reviewing and understanding the Code. 

• Complete applications are subject to staff review time of two weeks (14 days). 

Applicant: 

Address: 

E-Mail: 

Phone: 

Owner: 

Address: 

E-mail: 

Phone: 

 

Physical Property Address: 

Type of Plan Review: Lot Size/Zoning: 

Hillside Overlay zone?  Yes ☐ No ☐ Land Survey/ILC Included: Yes ☐          No ☐ 

APPLICANT’S STATEMENT: I understand the procedures and requirements (pages 1 and 2 of this application) that apply to my 
request and acknowledge an incomplete application will not be scheduled for public hearing. GMF Staff’s acceptance of the application, 
payment of fees, and submittal of accompanying materials does not constitute completeness. I further agree to reimburse the city for 
technical and professional consulting expenses that may be incurred during the review of my request. Failure to reimburse the Town for 
invoiced expenses constitutes an incomplete application. 
Certification: The undersigned applicant certifies under oath and under penalties of perjury that the information found in the application is 
true and accurate to the best of their knowledge.  

By checking this box, I agree to the certification statement and am typing my full name as an electronic signature. 

Applicant Signature       Date                                    

Owner Signature         Date    

Owner Signature         Date    

This document can be signed electronically using Adobe Reader DC for free.  

  

General Information 

Applicant 

Property 

Certification & Signature 

Dewberry Engineers, Inc. - Sam Franzen

990 S Broadway, Denver, CO 80209

sfranzen@dewberry.com

303-951-0618

Colorado Springs Utilities - Larysa Voronova

lvoronova@csu.org

719-668-3851

121 S Tejon St, Suite 200, Colorado Springs, CO 80947

10685 Hondo Ave, Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819

12,778 sqftArchitectural and Zoning

x x

10/12/2022

https://helpx.adobe.com/reader/using/sign-pdfs.html


This checklist serves as a guideline for submitting a Zoning & Architectural Plan Review (APR) Land Use 
Approval application and is not a substitute for the provisions in Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code 
or any other rules that may apply. Applicants are expected to review, at a minimum §16, Zoning, §17, 
Subdivision, §18, Building Regulations. 
APR is a general term for the review by the Planning Commission/Board of Trustees for zoning 
compliance and the evaluation of architectural compatibility, as outlined in §16-705.  

 1. Application & Petition 

a. Application, signed and dated by the applicant and property owner(s) 
b. Application fee 
c. Letter of explanation 

i. Describe the purpose of the project (e.g., deck, SFH addition, exterior renovation, etc.) and 
describe project details, referring to site plans and drawings as necessary 

 2. Development Plan  

a. Vicinity Map with streets and access points to the property 
b. Existing and proposed structures with zoning setbacks, property boundaries and dimensions 
c. The location of all drainage to, from and across the site, the location of intermittent and 

permanent springs, culverts and other drainage structure 

3. Procedure: 

a. Electronic submittal of signed application and checklist materials: planner@gmfco.us 
b. Payment of fees to Town Clerk for receipt 
c. Upon determining an application is complete, staff will schedule for PC and/or BoT public 

hearing 
 

 
 

Plan Review Checklist 

GMF Town Staff: 
 Application 
 Letter of Explanation 
 Development Plan 
 Application fee (Town Clerk) 

 Date____________   Amount_____________  Check #_____________  Credit Card 
 

https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH16ZO_ARTVIIADPR_S16-707FEPE
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH17SU_ARTVGR_S17-92ERCOPL
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH17SU_ARTVGR_S17-92ERCOPL
https://library.municode.com/co/green_mountain_falls/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH18BURE_ARTIIIREPE_S18-74SUUS
https://greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov/sites/greenmountainfalls/files/documents/2021%20Fee%20Schedule.pdf
https://greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov/sites/greenmountainfalls/files/documents/2021%20Fee%20Schedule.pdf
mailto:planner@gmfco.us


 

 
  

 

Page 1 of 2 

October 12, 2022 

Town of Green Mountain Falls  
Attn: Nate Scott, Planner  
Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819  
 
RE: Letter of Explanation for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station   

Dear Mr. Scott, 

Dewberry Engineers is pleased to submit this letter of explanation and documentation for the Zoning & 
Architectural Plan Review Land Use Approval for the Green Mountain Falls Pump Station (GMFPS) on 
behalf of Colorado Springs Utilities for review and comment.  

Separate variance requests have been submitted for non-residential use of a residentially zoned property, 
not meeting the required front setback, and for requirements in the Hillside Ordinance pertaining to 
distance to buildings on adjoining lots and distance to a major drainage way.  

The purpose of the GMFPS project is to replace the existing below grade pump station. The existing 
pump station was constructed in 1986 and has reached the end of its useful life. The new pump station 
will ensure reliable water service for residents in Green Mountain Falls as well as the Town itself. It will 
also provide a safer and more readily accessible working space for Colorado Springs Utilities enabling 
more efficient maintenance and repair activities.  

The site selected for the new GMFPS is 10685 Hondo Avenue. The property is owned by the same entity 
that owns the property at 6985 Colorado St directly to the west. Colorado Springs Utilities is currently 
negotiating the terms of an easement with the property owner to allow the pump station to be built on the 
site. The agreement and required Owner Signature will be submitted once the agreement is finalized. The 
site is zoned R-1 10,000. As mentioned above a variance has been submitted to allow non-residential use 
of a residentially zoned parcel. 

The new pump station will be an above grade building that sits back into the hillside on the property, see 
drawing C-3 in the attached Development Plan. The building will be a single room that is 22’-8” by 18’-
10”. A 13’-8” by 17’-8” open topped enclosure for a backup emergency generator will be attached to the 
east side of the building. A gravel parking drive/area will be installed between Hondo Ave and the 
building. The parking will be used by Colorado Springs Utilities Operations and Maintenance personnel 
and as overflow parking for the 6985 Colorado St residence. The majority of the parking/drive area is in 
the right of way for Hondo Ave. The right of way area encompassed by the parking/drive area is currently 
either an existing parking/drive area or a drainage channel. The parking/drive area will be expanded by 
replacing the existing culvert with a longer culvert with greater capacity than the existing culvert. 
Expanding the parking/drive area does not reduce the useable right of way area. The building location on 
the site and arrangement can be seen on drawing C-3.  
 
The exterior of the building has been designed to blend with the surrounding residential properties with 
similar features to many of the surrounding homes. The building walls will be concrete covered with a 
veneer composed of natural stone facing on the bottom and pre-finished metal narrow batten siding 
above. The stone veneer will slope to match the grade around the building. The generator enclosure walls 
will be concrete covered with a natural stone veneer to match the building and capped with colored 
concrete wall caps. The building roof will be pre-finished metal standing seam. The roof slants only to the 



Mr. Scott 
Green Mountain Falls Pump Station  
October 12, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

east to minimize the view impacts from the neighboring properties. The pre-finished metal siding and roof 
come with a 20 year warranty. Stone and metal wall and roof finish colors will be primarily earth tones, 
browns, and grays selected to blend with the surrounding environment. A double man door will be 
installed on the north face of the building for access and to allow for equipment removal. The generator 
enclosure will have a fabricated steel gate for access. The door and gate will be finished to blend with the 
building aesthetic. A plan view of the structure as well as building elevations can be seen on drawings A-
2, A-3, and A-4 in the attached Development Plan. 
 
Exterior lighting is provided above the man door and on the walls within the generator enclosure as 
shown on drawing E-11 in Attachment A. All fixtures will be down facing full cutoff fixtures and will be 
switched. The fixtures will only be left on when operations and maintenance staff are at the facility.  
 
A gutter along the south wall of the building and an inlet at the southeast corner of the building will be 
installed to capture drainage coming down the hillside. Two concrete retaining walls will be constructed 
on the east side of the site to replace the existing retaining wall that has partially failed and allow for 
appropriate grading of the parking area. A concrete headwall will be constructed on the west end of the 
culvert to support the drainage channel. The concrete will be colored to blend with the building aesthetics. 
Drawing C-3 shows the items discussed above as well as proposed grading. 
 
The pump station will provide an integral service to Green Mountain Falls and its residents. Design of the 
building and site have focused blending the structure with the aesthetics of the buildings in the area to 
minimize the impact of the structure on the surrounding environment.   
 
Please contact Sam Franzen at sfranzen@dewberry.com or 303-951-0618 with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
Sincerely,   

 

Sam Franzen 
Project Engineer 

mailto:sfranzen@dewberry.com




















BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 

DATE: 11/15/2022 AGENDA NO 7 SUBJECT: 
CDBG ADA Gazebo Lake Project 
Change Order 

Presented by:  

Becky Frank, Town Manager 

Discussion: While working on the installation of the outlet the contractor exposed an underground void that 
had been created as a result the outlet culvert’s deterioration allowing water to wear away at the earth.  The 
change order before you allows the contractor to replace the culvert with 80 feet of pipe that will have a much 
longer shelf life and rebuilds the drainage infrastructure at the lake.  Costs for the change order are broke out 
here: 

Total Cost $15,400 
CDBG remaining funds (contingency) $11,450 
Town Portion (from general fund-ARPA) $3950 

Add Option (tinted concrete)  
Total Cost $17,740 
CDBG remaining funds (contingency) $11,450 
Cost of tinted Concrete $2340 
Town Portion (from general fund-ARPA) $6,290 

Recommended Action:  
Approve change order with base cost or tinted concrete option. 

Respectfully, 

Becky Frank 



Reference #3495.1

CHANGE ORDER
For:  Town of Green Mountain Falls Rep:  Tom Hughes/Jason Grutter
Attn: Becky Frank, Nate Scott Phone:  877-MARRS-56

Email:  Tom@WaterOnMarrs.com
manager@gmfco.us

Terms good 60 days from date of proposal.
November 7, 2022 Proposal #:  3495.1

Bidnet Ref #: 0000281818

Gazebo Lake Park Improvements – Phase 1

Change Order #1

The Gazebo Lake Park Improvements project, previously approved by the Town of Green
Mountain Falls, under our Project # 3495 is well underway. As you are aware, new
circumstances were discovered last week necessitating additional work and repairs that must be
completed prior to the principle project being completed. Following is the proposal for work
under Chang Order #1:

● Excavate, remove, and replace approximately 80 feet of damaged culvert
pipe between lake and creek. Price includes labor and materials.

$15,400

Assuming prompt approval, we will commence this change order immediately upon authorization and
anticipate completing both the change order and the principle project by the end of the one-month
extension granted last week.

1
Water on Marrs Inc.

PO Box 6776, Burbank, CA 91510 • Lic #940440
phone & fax: 1.877.MARRS-56 • email: DesignGroup@WATERonMARRS.com

www.WATERonMARRS.com



Reference #3495.1

Water on Marrs is a fully licensed, insured, and bonded general contractor (Lic. #940440) in the state of
California.  We carry Workers Compensation insurance.
A $25 Late Payment Processing Fee is assessed on any invoices past 30 days due.  Additionally, interest
of 1.5% per month will be added to any account past due.
Title remains in name of seller until paid in full.  Purchaser agrees to pay in full all costs of collection,
reasonable attorney’s fees, and costs incurred by the seller to enforce payment of this notice.  This
notice serves as a 90-day preliminary notice to payor.  Under the Mechanics Lien Law (Section 7018,
California Business and Professional Code):  Any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, supplier or other
persons who help to improve your property but is not paid for his work or supplies, has the right to
enforce a claim against your property.  This means that after a court hearing, your property could be sold
by a court officer, and the proceeds of the sale will be used to satisfy the indebtedness.  This can
happen even if you have paid your own contractor in full while the subcontractor and laborers or
suppliers remain unpaid.

Liability Release/Waiver
Additionally, while Water on Marrs Inc. and its employees and affiliated companies (hereinafter

referred to collectively as “The Company”) will make every reasonable effort to ensure the safety of the
water feature and additional elements as outlined above, The Customer as signed and printed below
(referred to as the Customer) understands that an inherent danger exists with any water feature.  This
danger includes but is not limited to slippery surfaces and drowning hazards.  The Customer releases
The Company and its affiliates of any and all liability for any accidents or occurrences involving the water
feature and/or other elements installed and/or serviced by The Company and resulting in injury, death,
and/or damage to person, animal, or property, and assumes full responsibility for maintaining the safe
operation and maintenance of said water feature and/or other elements.

By signing here, customer agrees to the terms and/or schedule set forward in this proposal, except as
modified above and initialed by both parties.  Customer’s signature in effect converts this proposal into a
contract, return of which along with the deposit designated above will serve to certify customer’s intent
in going forward with the proposed project and will confirm customer’s position on Water on Marrs Inc.’s
construction schedule.

Customer’s acknowledgment: Water on Marrs Representative:

Sign:                                          Date: Sign:                                          Date:

Print: Print:

2
Water on Marrs Inc.

PO Box 6776, Burbank, CA 91510 • Lic #940440
phone & fax: 1.877.MARRS-56 • email: DesignGroup@WATERonMARRS.com

www.WATERonMARRS.com



Reference #3495.1-A

CHANGE ORDER
For:  Town of Green Mountain Falls Rep:  Tom Hughes/Jason Grutter
Attn: Becky Frank, Nate Scott Phone:  877-MARRS-56

Email:  Tom@WaterOnMarrs.com
manager@gmfco.us

Terms good 60 days from date of proposal.
November 8, 2022 Proposal #:  3495.1-A

Bidnet Ref #: 0000281818

Gazebo Lake Park Improvements – Phase 1

Change Order #1 - Revision A

The Gazebo Lake Park Improvements project, previously approved by the Town of Green
Mountain Falls, under our Project # 3495 is well underway. As you are aware, new
circumstances were discovered last week necessitating additional work and repairs that must be
completed prior to the principle project being completed.

In addition, we have received a new request to use colored concrete for the ADA platform and
walkway.

Following is the proposal for work under Chang Order #1:

● Excavate, remove, and replace approximately 80 feet of damaged culvert
pipe between lake and creek. Price includes labor and materials.

● Add coloring to concrete on the ADA fishing pier and walkway

$15,400

$2,340
TOTAL $17,740

Assuming prompt approval, we will commence this change order immediately upon authorization and
anticipate completing both the change order and the principle project by the end of the one-month
extension granted last week.

1
Water on Marrs Inc.

PO Box 6776, Burbank, CA 91510 • Lic #940440
phone & fax: 1.877.MARRS-56 • email: DesignGroup@WATERonMARRS.com

www.WATERonMARRS.com



Reference #3495.1-A

Water on Marrs is a fully licensed, insured, and bonded general contractor (Lic. #940440) in the state of
California.  We carry Workers Compensation insurance.
A $25 Late Payment Processing Fee is assessed on any invoices past 30 days due.  Additionally, interest
of 1.5% per month will be added to any account past due.
Title remains in name of seller until paid in full.  Purchaser agrees to pay in full all costs of collection,
reasonable attorney’s fees, and costs incurred by the seller to enforce payment of this notice.  This
notice serves as a 90-day preliminary notice to payor.  Under the Mechanics Lien Law (Section 7018,
California Business and Professional Code):  Any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, supplier or other
persons who help to improve your property but is not paid for his work or supplies, has the right to
enforce a claim against your property.  This means that after a court hearing, your property could be sold
by a court officer, and the proceeds of the sale will be used to satisfy the indebtedness.  This can
happen even if you have paid your own contractor in full while the subcontractor and laborers or
suppliers remain unpaid.

Liability Release/Waiver
Additionally, while Water on Marrs Inc. and its employees and affiliated companies (hereinafter

referred to collectively as “The Company”) will make every reasonable effort to ensure the safety of the
water feature and additional elements as outlined above, The Customer as signed and printed below
(referred to as the Customer) understands that an inherent danger exists with any water feature.  This
danger includes but is not limited to slippery surfaces and drowning hazards.  The Customer releases
The Company and its affiliates of any and all liability for any accidents or occurrences involving the water
feature and/or other elements installed and/or serviced by The Company and resulting in injury, death,
and/or damage to person, animal, or property, and assumes full responsibility for maintaining the safe
operation and maintenance of said water feature and/or other elements.

By signing here, customer agrees to the terms and/or schedule set forward in this proposal, except as
modified above and initialed by both parties.  Customer’s signature in effect converts this proposal into a
contract, return of which along with the deposit designated above will serve to certify customer’s intent
in going forward with the proposed project and will confirm customer’s position on Water on Marrs Inc.’s
construction schedule.

Customer’s acknowledgment: Water on Marrs Representative:

Sign:                                          Date: Sign:                                          Date:

Print: Print:

2
Water on Marrs Inc.

PO Box 6776, Burbank, CA 91510 • Lic #940440
phone & fax: 1.877.MARRS-56 • email: DesignGroup@WATERonMARRS.com

www.WATERonMARRS.com



 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 

DATE: 11/15/2022 AGENDA NO  SUBJECT: 
MOU with DCI/Corporation for 
National Community Service 

Presented by:  

Becky Frank, Town Manager 
 
 
Discussion: This MOU allows Downtown Colorado Inc. to proceed with the submission of the VISTA 
assignment description draft and begin the recruitment process.  The VISTA member would assist the Town 
in the implementation and support of the Land Use Code as well as supporting day-to-day planning functions.  
Additionally, the VISTA member will be assisting in the development of training opportunities and capacity 
building activities for the committees.  Once the VISTA member has been recruited, there will be an 
opportunity to amend the assignment description to benefit from any specific skillset that the VISTA may 
bring to the table.   
 
This process has been recently amended to reduce the Town’s financial risk in the event that recruitment 
becomes challenging during the national labor shortage.  
 
 
Recommended Action:  
Approve the MOU with DCI/CNCS 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Becky Frank 



VISTA Assignment Description (VAD) Template 
Title: Green Mountain Falls Community Development Fellow 
 
Sponsoring Organization: Downtown Colorado, Inc.  
Project Name:  
Project Number:   
Project Period:   
Site Name (if applicable): 
Focus Area(s) 

Primary:  Capacity Building  
Secondary:  

Note: 
If your VAD is not accepted, the State Office will note the reason(s) why here. 

 
VISTA Assignment Objectives and Member Activities 
 
Goal of the Project: Green Mountain Falls (GMF) is a small town of 667 in between Manitou 
Springs and Woodland Park, CO.  GMF has an average poverty rate of 15.5%, above the 
national average of 15.2%, and has been struggling to build enough capacity for a municipal 
planning department to provide basic services for the community. The goal of this VISTA 
project is to review existing community resources and staffing and develop a strategy with a 
timeline for establishing a municipal community development department. 
 
 
Objective of the Assignment (start date – end date) 
Goal of the Objective: Develop implementation strategies for the Town of Green Mountain 
Falls Land Use Code rewrite.  

Member Activities: 
1. Assist in implementing the new Land Use Code and procedures.  

2. Serve as a liaison between staff members, property owners, and consultants 
around development and permitting requests. 

3. Support and recommend procedural improvements for Land Use Code and 
the short-term rental policy in GMF. 

4. Identify and apply for grants to support municipal planning functions and staff. 

5. Assist the community in exploring additional community development 
projects/programs.  

 
 
 
Objective of the Assignment (start date – end date) 
Goal of the Objective: Work with town staff to execute action items and strategies found in the 
GMF comprehensive plan. 

Member Activities: 

1. Work with Town committees to develop organizational capacity and 
procedural/professional development. 



2. Assist the committees in identifying projects and developing annual work 
plans.  

3. Research funding opportunities to support committee work and assist 
staff/committee members in completion of grant applications and grant 
administration.  

 
 
Objective of the Assignment (start date – end date) 
Goal of the Objective: Identify opportunities to create sustainability within the Town staff and 
develop communications plans and opportunities for civic engagement.    
 

Member Activities: 

1. Research innovative solutions to meet small town staffing needs. 

2. Assist the Town and Committees in developing additional public outreach 
campaigns.  

3. Facilitate stakeholder engagement events and opportunities for civic 
engagement. 

4. Support and implement strategies aimed to improve the overall customer 
service of the Town.  
 

 
 
Objective of the Assignment (start date – end date) 
Reporting and Training 

Member Activities: 
 

1. Attend a monthly conference call with the Downtown Colorado, Inc. (DCI) 
AmeriCorps VISTA team and VISTA Leader. 

2. Fill out monthly reporting to the VISTA Leader via google forms 
3. Fill out a Community Assessment Form at the beginning and end of term of 

service 
4. Attend quarterly DCI AmeriCorps VISTA trainings and DCI Annual Spring 

Conference (expenses and lodging paid by DCI). This will provide the VISTA 
member with relevant information and connections that work towards 
accomplish member activities. May be required to attend relevant meetings, 
forums, or conferences that relates and assists in the VISTA member 
accomplishing their VISTA activities outlined in this VAD.  
 

 



Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between Colorado Community Revitalization
Association, dba Downtown Colorado, Inc.

&

The Town of Green Mountain Falls

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) establishes a collaborative partnership between the
above entities from November 2022 through May 2023.

This document defines the responsibilities of Downtown Colorado, Inc. (DCI) as the Project Sponsor
and the Town of Green Mountain Falls as the Project Host Site with respect to the assignment of a
AmeriCorps VISTA member to perform services outlined in the VISTA Assignment Description. The
obligations of the parties hereto are subject to and governed by the terms and conditions of the
Memorandum of Agreement between the Corporation for National & Community Service (CNCS)
and Downtown Colorado, Inc., CNCS Project Number 16VSWCO001, which is incorporated herein by
reference, and federal laws and regulations and CNCS policies applicable to the project, or which
may become applicable to it subsequent to the execution of this Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU).

1. As the Project Sponsor, Downtown Colorado, Inc. will:
a. Serve as the Fiscal Agent and overall administrator for the grant and provide overall

supervision of the grant, provide assistance to the Project Host Sites and VISTA
members in support of grant implementation, and be the liaison between Project
Host Sites, VISTA members and AmeriCorps.

b. Comply with the provisions of the Memorandum of Agreement between the
AmeriCorps and Downtown Colorado, Inc.

c. Monitor VISTA placements to the Project Host Site for the duration of this
Memorandum of Understanding subject to the availability of funding and
recruitment/training deadlines for VISTA Virtual Member Orientation (VMO) set forth
by the AmeriCorps.

d. Assist the Project Host Site with the development of VISTA member work plans and
assignment descriptions. Provide final approval of all VISTA work plans and
assignment descriptions prior to VISTA candidates attending virtual member
orientation and beginning their term of VISTA service.

e. Assist with the recruitment, screening, interviewing, and selection of VISTA
candidates when requested by the Project Host Site.



f. Coordinate and communicate quarterly trainings and professional development
opportunities to the VISTA.

2. The Project Host Site will:
a. Provide a Site Supervisor to provide day-to-day supervision of the activities of the

VISTA member(s).
b. Notify DCI immediately of unexplained VISTA absence, lack of communication or

problems.
c. Final approval for all VISTA candidates to attend VMO is subject to review and

selection by the Colorado State AmeriCorps office.
d. Submit a VISTA Assignment Description (VAD) and Position Description to Project

Sponsor for approval and complete all edits requested by Project Sponsor.
e. Provide the VISTA member(s) individualized On-Site Orientation and Training at the

beginning of their term of service.
f. Use the approved VISTA Assignment Description (VAD) as the source of tasks and

responsibilities for the VISTA member to empower the capacity building activities of
the member.

g. Ensure that VISTA members dedicate 40 hours per week to their approved VISTA
Assignment Description to address the community needs identified by the Project
Host Community.

h. Ensure that VISTAs track their hours, sick days and leave days following the Project
Host Site’s existing procedures and tracking mechanisms.

i. Submit the VISTA member’s timesheet on the 26th of each month. Inform the VISTA
Supervisor and Director of Downtown Colorado, Inc. of any changes in status of the
VISTA and other concerns related to the VISTA Project by completing a brief form on
the 12th and 26th of each month.

j. Ensure that VISTA completes a brief monthly project report to DCI.
k. Schedule regular meetings (preferably weekly) with the VISTA member(s) to discuss

the project and other concerns.
l. Provide adequate working space, materials, supplies, and access to a phone and

computer to permit the VISTA member to perform his/her assigned duties.
m. Ensure that the VISTA member is reimbursed for all local travel associated with the

project. Mileage reimbursement should be done in accordance with the Project Host
Site’s existing policies and procedures.

n. Allow the VISTA member to participate in scheduled professional development and
training opportunities, site visits, and conference calls. The VISTA member will be
required to attend four trainings hosted by Downtown Colorado, Inc. All costs
associated with these trainings, including reimbursement for travel, will be covered
by DCI.

o. Allow the VISTA member to participate in disaster relief/emergency response efforts
as directed by CNCS.



p. Allow the VISTA member to participate in Days of Service (e.g., MLK Day of Service,
National Volunteer Week, Make A Difference Day) should activities be organized by
the Downtown Colorado, Inc. or in a community where the VISTA member is serving.

3. Payment Terms and Dates
a. The Project Host Site agrees to pay Downtown Colorado, Inc. a total of $14,000 for

the services of the VISTA volunteer; $1,500 for administrative fees due upon signing
this MOU and the remaining $12,500 due upon the physical arrival of the VISTA
volunteer at the Host Site.

b. If the VISTA volunteer exits the project before completion of service, DCI will give the
Project Host Site a pro-rated refund for the remaining VISTA Stipend minus $1,500
for DCI administrative time. The pro-rated refund will thus equal $9,000 (the amount
eligible to be refunded) divided by 12, or times the months remaining for the year of
service at the time of departure. Only complete remaining months will be refunded.

c. In addition, the host site is encouraged to provide $4,000 over the course of the year
directly to the VISTA’s landlord to assist with housing expenses ($333 monthly).
Alternative arrangements for housing assistance are possible, if the Project Host Site
can locate housing for the VISTA, subject to approval by Downtown Colorado, Inc.
and the Colorado State CNCS office.

d. VISTA volunteers cannot be released from their position under the same procedures
as regular employees as only the Corporation for National and Community Service
(CNCS) can officially suspend or terminate a VISTA volunteer.  Host Site organizations
not in compliance with all program expectations may not be eligible for a partial
refund of the VISTA Stipend.  In the event of a termination of the VISTA Volunteer,
the $500 travel and training fee will not be refunded and housing assistance may be
terminated at the Host Site communities’ discretion.  

4. Joint Responsibilities
Both parties to the Memorandum of Understanding shall:

a. Make every reasonable effort to ensure that the health and safety of the VISTA
members are protected during the performance of their assigned duties. Neither the
Project Sponsor nor the Project Host Site shall assign or require VISTA members to
perform duties which would jeopardize their safety or cause them to sustain injuries.

b. Ensure that persons selected as VISTA members are not related by blood or
marriage to Project Host Site staff, Project Sponsor staff, officers or members of the
Project Host Site’s or the Project Sponsor Site’s boards of directors, or responsible
program staff at CNCS.

c. Neither the Project Sponsor nor the Project Host Site has the discretion or authority
to dismiss or separate a VISTA member from service; CNCS is the sole authority that
can terminate a VISTA member’s term of service. The Project Site should document
any performance or behavior issues and immediately report them to Downtown
Colorado, Inc. The Project Sponsor Supervisor or Director of Downtown Colorado,
Inc. will report such incidences to the state CNCS office and resolve them in



accordance with rules governing the grant. This is necessary to provide VISTA
members due process.

5. Non-Discrimination & Sexual Harassment
a. No person with responsibilities in the operation of the project shall discriminate

against any VISTA member, member of the staff, or beneficiary of the project with
respect to any aspect of the project on the basis of race, religion, color, national
origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, political affiliation, marital or parental
status, or military service.

b. Sexual harassment is a form of discrimination based on sex, which is prohibited as
addressed directly above. As a recipient of federal financial assistance from CNCS,
the Project Sponsor and Project Host Site are responsible for violations of the
prohibition against sexual harassment and for taking corrective action and/or
disciplinary action if violations occur. Such sexual harassment violations include:

i. Acts of “quid pro quo,” sexual harassment where a supervisor demands
sexual favors for service benefits, regardless of whether the Project Sponsor
or Project Host Site, their agents, or supervisory employees should have
known of the acts.

ii. Unwelcome sexual advances, request for sexual favors and other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature which have the purpose or effect of
creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive service environment.

iii. Acts of sexual harassment toward fellow AmeriCorps VISTA members or
non-employees, where the Project Sponsor or Project Host Site, their agents,
or supervisory employees knew or should have known of the conduct, unless
they took immediate and appropriate corrective action.

6. Legal Restrictions
VISTA members should work to emphasize the mobilization of local human, financial, and
material resources, the transference of skills to community residents, and the expansion of the
capacity of the low-income community to solve its own problems. VISTA members should NOT
perform administrative duties except for those related to the goals and objectives identified in
their work plan.

The Project Host Site agrees that no VISTA member assigned under this MOU shall participate in:

a. Partisan and non-partisan political activities, including voter registration.
b. Direct or indirect attempts to influence passage or defeat of legislation or proposals

by initiative petition.
c. Labor or anti-labor organization or related activities.
d. Religious instruction, worship services, proselytization, or any other religious activity

as an official part of their duties.



The Project Host Site further agrees not to:

e. Carry out projects (related to VISTA) resulting in the identification of such projects
with partisan or non-partisan political activities, including voter registration activities
or providing voters transportation to the polls.

f. Assign VISTA members to activities that would result in the hiring or displacement of
employed workers, filling-in for absent employees or supervisors, or impairing
existing contracts for services.

g. Approve the involvement of any VISTA member assigned to it in planning, initiating,
participating in, or otherwise siding or assisting in any demonstrations whatsoever.

h. Accept, or permit the acceptance of, compensation from the VISTA members or from
beneficiaries for the service of the VISTA members.

7. Modifications
This Memorandum of Understanding may be amended at any time by an agreement in writing
executed by authorized representatives of the Project Sponsor and Project Host Site.

8. Termination
a. Downtown Colorado, Inc. will use the above provisions to determine continued

eligibility of the Town of Green Mountain Falls to be a Project Host Site. Failure to
comply with any of the roles and responsibilities as outlined in this MOU will result in
responsive and corrective action to include removal of the VISTA member placed at
your site. In this case, the Downtown Colorado Capacity Buildings Initiative will
provide 14 days’ notice of termination of and/or VISTA removal/transfer from the
project.

b. Any termination of the Memorandum of Understanding between Downtown
Colorado, Inc. as the Project Sponsor and the Corporation for National & Community
Service will result in the termination of all provisions of this Memorandum of
Understanding.

Signatures for MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING between Downtown Colorado, Inc. and the
Town of Green Mountain Falls.

Signature_________________________ Kylie Brown

Date_______________ VISTA Program Supervisor

Downtown Colorado, Inc.

Signature________________________ Becky Frank

Date____________ Town Manager



Green Mountain Falls



 
Parks, Recreation, and Trails Advisory Committee 

Agenda Memorandum
 

DATE: 11.15.2022 AGENDA NO 10 SUBJECT: CDBG Phase I Concrete 
Tint 

Presented by: PRT - Jesse Stroope, PRT Chair 

Attachments: None 
 
Background 
At the 11.10.2022 meeting, the Parks, Recreation and Trails (PRT) Advisory Committee voted unanimously to 
recommend to the Board to add an integral stain of terra cotta color to the concrete for the CDBG Phase I project. 
It was also recommended to add a broom finish for safety 
 
Discussion 
To make the concrete used for the CDBG Phase I project integrate with the natural colors of Gazebo Park, the PRT is 
recommending a terra cotta, integral stain be added. This will include all the concrete work for this phase: the path 
to the ADA pier from the handicap parking, the pier, and the walkway through the park.  
 
For safety concerns during snow and ice, a broom finish is recommended. Don Walker will discuss with the 
contractor what broom finish is appropriate. 
 
The estimated cost to tint the concrete is $2,300. 
 
Recommended Motion 
 
I move to approve the Change Order to add an integral stain of terra cotta color and suggested broom finish to the 
CDBG Phase I project.  
 
Alternative Options 
 
 
 


	1-2022-11-15 BOT AGENDA Draft
	6 - 20220707 Application Packet - CSU Pump Station
	GMFPS 1 - Land Suitability Analysis 2022.10.12
	GMFPS 2 - Zoning Variance Applicaiton 2022.10.12
	GMFPS 3 - Setback Variance Application 2022.10.12
	GMFPS 4 - Hillside Overlay Variance Application 2022.10.12
	GMFPS 5 - GECP Application 2022.10.12
	GMFPS 6 - Zoning and Architectural Plan Review Application 2022.10.12

	7a - Memo CDBG Change Order
	7b - Proposal 3495-.1 - ChOrd Gazebo Project.docx
	7c - Proposal 3495-.1-A - ChOrd-Revision Gazebo Project.docx (1)
	8a - Memo VISTA Program MOU
	8b - GMF VAD draft 2023
	8c - Green Mountain Falls MOU



